
Heritage Citation

Carter's Piggery Residence

Key details

Addresses At 720 South Pine Road, Everton Park, Queensland 4053

Type of place House, Farm

Period Interwar 1919-1939

Style Queenslander

Lot plan L2_RP107719

Key dates Local Heritage Place Since — 1 July 2003
Date of Citation — April 2003

Construction Roof: Corrugated iron;
Walls: Timber

Criterion for listing (A) Historical; (D) Representative
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This Bungalow style farmhouse was constructed circa 1919 for Job and Mary Carter who ran a piggery on the
site. By 1946 the piggery comprised nine outbuildings which were located behind the farmhouse. In Everton
Park’s postwar housing boom, many local industries, including Carter’s piggery, were forced to close and the
land was sold for subdivision. This farmhouse remained in the Carter family until 1993 and is one of the few
surviving reminders of Everton Park’s rural heritage.

History 

The history of the Everton Park area goes back to the late 1858 when the village of Everton Park was included in
the Parish of Kedron and the main industry was dairy farming and timber gathering. Generally though, Everton
Park was part of the Enoggera district and it was usually known by this title. The site that contains the property at
720 South Pine Road was originally part of a crown land purchase made by Elizabeth Ann McDowall on 22
March 1869. McDowell paid ?28 for 111 acres of land that was described as Selection 284 and Portion 284 in
the Parish of Kedron. Elizabeth McDowell held her selection as an investment and on 4 April 1886, she
mortgaged the property for ?200 through Richard Warren Weedon. On 23 July 1885, McDowell transferred the
land to Gustave Caesar Horstmann.

Horstmann went into partnership with Edgar Wright Walker and new title deed was issued to the joint owners on
14 August 1886. They then surrendered Selection 284 to the Crown and applied for a new title to be issued for
this land. The new title issued on 9 March 1887, described as Portions 15 and 16 and it covered an area of land
comprising 119 acres, 2 roods and 38 perches. The partners obtained a mortgage of ?1,050 on their property on
11 March 1892. Bradshaw Barker, Arthur Anthony Robinson and Friderie Hamilton Eaglesfieed provided this
loan. When Gustav Horstmann died on 16 November 1899, the land came under the sole control of Edgar
Walker. Walker’s occupation, by this time, was an insurance manager. 

In 1895, Everton Park was first classified as a separate area of Brisbane and by 1898 some new rural industries
such as Pullen’s Vineyard had come to the district, to join existing businesses such as Poultney’s Sawmill
(established on South Pine Road in 1887). The opening of the Mayne Junction to Enoggera railway line in 1899
would have been an inducement for further settlement of the area. The first post office opened in Everton Park in
that year. Thus in 1900, Walker decided to subdivide his land into small farm or residential allotments. He
marketed the allotments under the banner of the Duke of Cornwall and York Estate of North Enoggera and
Cameron Brothers auctioneers in the Adelaide Street Centennial Hall conducted the first public auction of
Walker’s land on 18 May 1901. The first allotment was sold to Michael Kelly on 5 August 1901. 

During Walker’s subdivision of Portions 15 and 16, the land containing the site of the property at 720 South Pine
Road, was redesignated as resubdivision C of subdivision A of Portion 15. This was an area of 3 acres, 2 roods
and 31 perches. Edgar Walker had been issued with a new title to this component of his land on 6 July 1900.
This block was further subdivided and on 30 July 1902, John Tucker, the local postmaster, purchased
subdivisions 145 and 146. This was followed on 30 September 1902, by the sale of subdivisions 142, 143 and
144 to Matilda Quince, the wife of Samford farmer George Quince. On 28 March 1904, George Bentley obtained
subdivision 141. Then on 26 February 1918, subdivisions 139 and 140 were sold to Job Carter and his wife Mary
Elizabeth Carter.

The Carter family were farmers but their initial land purchase had gained them approximately 28 perches of land.
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This was far too small for a viable farm so they needed to buy up the surrounding blocks of land. Matilda Quince
had sold subdivisions 143 and 144 to John Tucker on 8 November 1912. She transferred subdivision 142 to her
daughter Mary Elizabeth Quince on 13 February 1918. When George Bentley died on 8 December 1911,
subdivision 141 passed to his widow Mary Jane Bentley. On 26 February 1918, the Carter family bought
subdivision 141 from Mary Bentley, subdivision 142 from Mary Quince and subdivisions 143, 144 and 145 from
John Tucker.  

This gave Job and Mary Carter an area of uncleared land comprising a total of 1 acre and 5.3 perches of land
that was bordered on two sides by Bunya (later South Pine) Road and Pullen Road. They consolidated their
various land purchases under one title deed that covered subdivisions 139 to 146. After purchasing these blocks
in 1918, Job and Mary Carter spent the next year clearing the land and constructing a piggery. Their house at
720 South Pine Road was built during this time. The farmhouse was completed by 1919, for, according to the
1919-20 edition of the Queensland Post Office Directories, Job Carter began to receive mail at his Bunya Road
address at that time. As was the norm with farmhouses, they built their home on the highest point of their land,
allowing them to have views looking down Bunya road and across to the Poultney’s Sawmill. 

On 7 March 1929, the Carters split subdivisions 145 and 146 from the rest of their farm. This allowed them to
have a separate title deed for the land containing their farmhouse. The Carters piggery gradually expanded in
size, with the outbuildings spreading along the length of what is now Forrest Street. On 4 September 1930, they
took out a mortgage on the piggery through Queensland Trustee Limited, perhaps as a means of financing
further expansion. Mary Carter died on 21 August 1934 and widower Job Carter carried on running the piggery.
Bob Cottrell, whose family moved into a house in Buller Street in 1935, remembered Job Carter as a grumpy old
man. But Job Carter’s lack of humour was probably related to the fact that Bob and his childhood mates would
build shanghais and fire rocks at the pigs at Carter’s Piggery. The piggery was a major local business in an area
dominated by Poultney’s sawmill and dairy farmers. An Everton Park-Kedron Progress Association had been
formed in 1917 and during the interwar period it organised a bus service, telephone and water supply and the
erection of a community hall by the Workers’ Political Organisation. 

The elderly Job Carter transferred ownership of his piggery onto his son, John Joseph Carter on 21 December
1937. By 1946, the piggery comprised nine outbuildings structured behind the Carter farmhouse. Due to the
accidental destruction of the certificate of title to subdivisions 145 and 146, a new title deed had to be issued for
the house and land on 5 July 1965. Thus property description for 720 South Pine Road changed to Lot 2. The
post-war housing boom in Everton Park that began in 1952 forced the eventual closure of many local industries,
including Carter’s Piggery. The land though was retained by the Carter family. On 13 October 1988, the family
home passed to Simeon John Carter. The property was sold by the Carter family in 1993. The house at 720
South Pine Road is one of the few surviving reminders of Everton Park’s rural heritage.

Statement of significance 

Relevant assessment criteria

This is a place of local heritage significance and meets one or more of the local heritage criteria under the
Heritage planning scheme policy of the Brisbane City Plan 2014. It is significant because:
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Historical
CRITERION A

The place is important in demonstrating the evolution or pattern of the city's or local area’s history

as an early twentieth century farmhouse that survives as a reminder of Everton Park's rural heritage.

Representative
CRITERION D

The place is important in demonstrating the principal characteristics of a particular class or classes of cultural
places

as a fine example of an early twentieth century farmhouse.
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Copyright Brisbane City Council

Note: This citation has been prepared on the basis of evidence available at the time including an external
examination of the building. The statement of significance is a summary of the most culturally important aspects
of the property based on the available evidence, and may be re-assessed if further information becomes
available. The purpose of this citation is to provide an informed evaluation for heritage registration and
information. This does not negate the necessity for a thorough conservation study by a qualified practitioner,
before any action is taken which may affect its heritage significance.

Citation prepared by — Brisbane City Council (page revised June 2022)
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